Health and Community Services Department Advisory Board Part A – Meeting in Public Minutes



Date: 25 July 2024	Time: 9:30 – 12:30pm	Venue: Main Hall, St Paul's Centre, Dumaresq
		St, St Helier, Jersey JE2 3RL

Non-Executive Board Members (Voting	g):	
Anthony Hunter OBE - CHAIR	Non-Executive Director	AH
Dame Clare Gerada DBE	Non-Executive Director (Item 8 onwards)	CG
Julie Garbutt	Non-Executive Director	JG
Executive Board Members (Voting):		
Chris Bown	Chief Officer HCS	СВ
Mr Patrick Armstrong MBE	Medical Director	PA
Obi Hasan	Head of Strategic Finance HCS	OH
Executive Board Members (Non-Voting	g):	
Jessie Marshall	Chief Nurse	JM
Emily Hoban	Head of Access deputising for Claire Thompson, Chief Operating Officer – Acute Services	EH
Andy Weir	Director of Mental Health Services, Adult Social Care and Intermediate Services	AW
Jo Poynter	Associate Director of Improvement and Innovation deputising for Dr Anuschka Muller, Director of Improvement and Innovation	JP
lan Tegerdine	Director of Workforce	ITe
In Attendance:		
Dr Cheryl Power	Director of Culture, Engagement and Wellbeing	СР
Cathy Stone	Nursing / Midwifery Lead – HCS Change Team	CS
Emma O'Connor Price	Board Secretary	EOC
Daisy Larbalestier	Business Support Officer	DL
Professor Peter Bradley	Director of Public Health and Medical Officer for Health (Item 7 only)	РВ
Dr James Grose	Chair of the End-of-Life Care Partnership and palliative Care Consultant (Item 8 only)	JGr
John Gavey	Health and Safety Manager (Item 11 only)	JGa

Welcome and Apologies 1 Action AH welcomed all to the meeting. EOC provided some housekeeping information including location of fire exits, comfort break arrangements and minimising distractions during the meeting. Apologies received from: Claire Thompson Chief Operating Officer – Acute Services СТ Dr Anuschka Muller Director of Improvement and Innovation AM Carolyn Downs CB Non-Executive Director CD Dame Clare Gerada DBE Non-Executive Director (late arrival) CG

2	Declarations of Interest	Action
No deo	clarations	

Minutes of the Previous Meeting 3

The minutes of the meeting held on 30th May 2024 were agreed.

Matters Arising and Action Tracker 4

ACTION 123: EH confirmed that both the inpatient elective and outpatient new referral waiting lists are fully validated and this is a continuous process of validation. Agree CLOSE.

Action

Action

ACTION 114: AW advised a paper will be presented in Sept 2024. The Quality and Performance Report for Month 6 demonstrates a plateau as a consequence of the work to review the waiting lists and reprioritise referrals. In addition, the clinical team are changing the pathway for assessment. Remain **OPEN**.

ACTION 76: AH explained that the policy required for Article 36 has been prioritised ahead of progressing the Prosecution Policy and provided a preliminary delivery date of 2 -3 months. Remain **OPEN**.

ACTION 31: OH, advised this is not complete, feedback has been provided to the central team. There is still no confirmed date when budget holders will have access to budgetary information (through the Connect System). Remain **OPEN**.

5	Chair's Introductions	Action
As abo	ove.	

6	Chief Officer Report	Action
	ok the paper as read which provides a summary of key activities for Health and Community	
	ces (HCS), an overview of HCS' performance since the last Board meeting, and a summary	
of key	issues, some of which are presented in more detail through the relevant board papers.	
with in Florer oppor CB re invited leader (FMLI	r, JG suggested that the Dementia Strategy could be presented at a future Board meeting notes extended to key stakeholders. Secondly, JG welcomed the introduction of the nee Nightingale Foundation Leadership Course for nurses and asked what training tunities are available to doctors moving into or looking to further develop leadership skills. sponded that senior staff across all Government of Jersey (GOJ) departments have been d to attend the Cohen Brown Leadership training and this includes those in medical rship roles. In addition, PA explained that the Faculty of Medical Leadership and Managers M) provided multiprofessional training (Doctors, Lead Nurses and General Managers) ximately 18 months ago.	
	ON: Medical leadership training opportunities suggested for inclusion on the People and re Committee agenda.	

7	Public Health	Action
Health	elcomed Professor Peter Bradley (PB), Director of Public Health and Medical Officer for n, and emphasised the need for the Board to understand the importance of Public Health in y and how HCS can contribute and support this agenda.	
health of poc	opulation of Jersey is getting older and as people get older, they live more years in poorer a; the ambition must be to make people well for longer in their lives and reduce the period prer health. This will also reduce the burden on the healthcare system. PB presented a a of slides (addendum to these minutes).	
Minist	anked PB for the presentation and highlighted the linkage with HCS and the vision of the er for Health and Social Services (MHSS) for health, quality of life and prevention in Jersey he range of services that will support this transition.	
to 61.4 cost o to be i the Mi promo produ- in hea	anked PB for the interesting and thought-provoking presentation, in particular the reference 4 years for females in good health and 23.7 years in poorer health. Also, that the estimated of lost productivity to the Jersey economy due to preventable ill health has been estimated nearly £108m per year. JG echoed AH's observation that this Public Health agenda reflects HSS vision for the need of an integrated health system and the part that prevention, health obtion and wellbeing has in this. Healthy people are happy people, happy people are ctive people and productive people contribute more to the economy that can be reinvested with services. JG asked how HCS (which is predominantly engaged in the provision of the unwell) can support Public Health to move progress their agenda. PB responded	

the main issue is advocacy for investment as services are not currently well-developed, particularly when compared to other health jurisdictions (Jersey spends approx. 1/5 to a 1/4 of that seen in other jurisdictions). In addition, strengthen existing services such as vaccination to ensure efficiency. JG noted that the need to double fund services i.e. fund the prevention and wellbeing services at the same time as funding the ill health services. This is a debate that needs to occur with both the GOJ and the public to understand how this can be progressed as it is critical to establishing a healthy population and funding healthcare in the future.

CB advised the Board that he meets regularly with PB and PA to discuss the issues described above. In addition, CB noted that governments in most other healthcare jurisdictions have difficulty with the issue of double funding and that HCS will support as much as possible.

AH thanked PB for his attendance and advised that work will continue to align HCS with the Public Health agenda. PB thanked Dr Matt Doyle, Chief of Service and Sarah Evans, General Manager for Primary and Prevention, Therapies and Community Dental for their contribution to this morning's presentation.

8	Update on the implementation of 'A Palliative and End of Life Care Strategy for Adults in Jersey'	Action
	mes Grose (JGr), Chair of the End-of-Life Care Partnership and Palliative Medicine	
Cons	ultant was welcomed to the meeting.	
strate comm have	ovided an introduction including the funding of the service and the development of the gy. Key factors to the provision of a good service for everyone in Jersey include increasing nunity awareness, early identification of those on an end-of-life pathway to support them to a good death and supporting preferred place of death (see paper). To deliver against the gy, a partnership group has been set up.	
progra Pallia 2023 recog a goo expre	hanked JP for the introduction and thanked the Board for the opportunity to talk about the ess of the strategy. The Board was asked to recognise that there has never been a tive and End of Life (EOL) Care Strategy for Jersey and the publication of this in November was a huge advancement in terms of provision of service for this cohort of people. It nises and benchmarks against International frameworks the key quality criteria to resemble d palliative care service i.e. delivery of patient centred care, understanding patients ssed wishes, equal provision of service for non-cancer disease, and meeting physical tom needs in addition to psychological, spiritual and social needs.	
repres Home repres is no partne what	CL Partnership Group was formed shortly after the publication of the strategy with strong sentation across all stakeholders (HCS, Jersey Hospice Care (JHC), Family Nursing and Care (FNHC), Jersey Care Federation (JCF), Jersey Ambulance Service (JAS), patient sentatives and charities including MacMillan and Age Concern). This recognises that there single organisation in Jersey that can meet all holistic needs for this groups of patients. The ership set about to explore priority aims against the strategy and concluded that the core of needed to be delivered must be based on knowledge (clinical, medical, scientific) and well-ided evidence to support quality in the service.	
	rst workstream focussed on education and a robust education strategy has been produced partnership group that identifies the key areas in which education and dissemination is	
in the A gap comp works the cr right o navig	vell-developed specialist palliative care team is a finite resource that looks after individuals ir final stage of the disease journey or those with complex symptoms prior to being at EOL. o was identified for those individuals who are not in the final stages of life or do not have lex symptoms but have a life-limiting illness – these patients still have needs. The second stream's focus is looking at how we make sure that those patients who do not currently fulfil iteria for specialist palliative but equally have needs from a palliative care service, have the coordinated care. Key roles in supporting this group of patients have been identified as ators, or 'care coordinators'. These individuals are professionals from a nursing ground who can guide patients through a complex system of multiple stakeholders providing	

background who can guide patients through a complex system of multiple stakeholders providing all different types of supportive services for patients with life limiting illness who do not meet the

threshold to be under specialist palliative care team care. One of the roles of this coordination service is to look at access to care and making sure that mechanism for funding is in place to rapidly increase a package of care for someone with a life-limiting illness who is starting to deteriorate at home. In addition, rapid access to equipment and mediation as these are often factors that can limit patients from being able to maintain their care at home.

The importance was noted of making sure that patients have the opportunities through skilled professionals to have conversations about their wishes when it comes to EOL and the role of care coordinator to make sure these wishes are documented and importantly, shared and disseminated (to increase the chances of these wishes being met).

JGr advised the Board that he is proud to Chair the partnership group and the investment in Palliative Care in Jersey is world class and exemplary. JGr noted he has never worked in an area (whether NHS or wider) that has invested and recognised the worth and importance of caring for those with complex specialist palliative care needs and also those with life limiting illness without complex needs who are currently missed in many jurisdictions. JGr is proud to be part of this work with all the stakeholders who are doing incredibly good things to realise this strategy. JGr thanked the Board for opportunity to share this.

Noting the reference to improvements in technology to facilitate better integration between services, CB asked JGr if an integrated care record would improve the coordination of EOL care across Jersey. JGr agreed and noted that digital infrastructure would support the dissemination of care plans. Having a well-educated workforce with the skills, knowledge and ability to have difficult conversations with patients about their wishes when it comes to dying is of limited benefit if these wishes cannot be communicated across services: the whole pathway falls. Positively, progress has been made with the electronic dissemination of 'do not attempt cardio-pulmonary resuscitation (DNA CPR) decisions and there is now a pathway to communicate DNACPR decisions electronically to the hospital. However, there is further work to explore how the wider decision making of patients is communicated.

CS commended JGr for the work of the group and asked JGr if he was confident that the strategy is reaching hard to reach groups. JGr recognised that there is a need (as part of the access workstream) to understand what is being done to support BAME groups in terms of access as currently there is under representation. The message must be that the specialist palliative care team and the partnership group will provide general palliative care regardless of ethnicity, religion or background. This work is not part of a current workstream, but it will be part of a future workstream.

Noting that much of the palliative care would be provided in the community until such time as specialist palliative care services are needed, CG asked if the community representation of the partnership needed to increase. JGr responded that it is important to recognise that everyone provides palliative care, and the partnership group represents a core group of people that attend regular quarterly meetings; additional invites are sent when appropriate. AH suggested that JGr and CG could meet to discuss further outside of this meeting if required.

AH extended the Boards thanks to JGr for his attendance and presentation.

9	Patient and Service User Charter	Action
Panel	vised she is presenting the Charter on behalf of Carl Walker, Chair of the Patient and User . The Charter represents the work of the panel. The HCS Senior Leadership Team has ved the Charter for presentation to the Board.	
AH no	ted the Board's appreciation to Carl Walker and the Panel in producing this.	
langua and w appro	oted that HCS includes a range of community and social services and commented that the age may need to be changed to reflect this. CB extended his thanks to the Patient Panel hilst the SLT is supportive recognised the point made by AW to ensure the language is priate for all services across HCS. It is then important to ensure the Charter is unicated across all sites and services in HCS.	

CS sought to clarify that the voice of the child is included in the development of a children's / young person's charter and JM confirmed that this will be a collaborative piece of work.

The Board approved the Charter in principle.

10	Outcomes of the Ward Based Peer Reviews	Action
	ok the paper as read and verbally summarise the key points detailed in the paper, including of good practice and areas for ongoing improvement.	
The C	Quality, Safety and Improvement Committee will be receiving quarterly assurance reports.	
reviev	oted the regular (weekly) visibility of senior nursing leadership is very important. These ws provide real-time information and allow for real time improvements where indicated. The ws form a critical part of continuous improvement.	
impro suppo inspe congi	oted this represents a robust process of assurance and is open regarding the ovements that must be made. As a new member of staff within HCS, ITe endorsed and orted this process, stating this approach is not often seen. As an advisor to CQC ctions, ITe is aware of different practices, and this is one that a provider would be ratulated for. Specific areas highlighted include the senior nursing leadership and the professional approach to these reviews.	

11	Health and Safety Q1 2024 Report	Action
	Gavey, Health and Safety Manager for HCS, was welcomed to the meeting and took the r as read. In addition,	
•	The approach to Health and Safety is that of risk control and mitigation (rather than compliance). This is how the Health and Safety team are led and engage with all staff across HCS: the ability to mature Health and Safety culture is owned by Managers and Team Leaders in the operational teams. The Health and Safety team in HCS delivers specific training interventions which is unique to HCS. The Health and Safety Management System refers to the way in which HCS manages health and safety throughout the estate, and how it can demonstrate its due diligence of an effective implemented approach (rather than a software system). It is based on Plan, Do, Check, Act or HSG 65 from the health and Safety Executive. This risk entry is the collective of the other twenty-seven risks identified. >10,000 training certificates were issued for Health and Safety in HCS during 2023. 2,204 hours of face-to-face training were delivered by the Health and Safety Team. 91 HCS specific sample audits were completed. Whilst the report refers to Q1, during Q2 a Corporate audit (classed as external) of radiology against the lonising Radiation Minimum Standard and achieved 100%. It is very rare to achieve 100% and JGa asked the Board to note the work of the radiology department in achieving this. Further detail will be provided in the Q2 report. This achievement has also been included in the report to the States Employment Board (SEB).	
	nanked JGa, particularly for reminding the Board that health and Safety is the responsibility employees.	
agair also i Healt acros	sked for clarification regarding the risk of violence and aggression and who it relates to i.e., ast staff, between staff. JGa explained that this relates to incidents as described by JGa and ncludes members of the public and visitors as HCS has a duty to non-employees under the h and Safety Law. The risk is representative of HCS as a whole but there will be different as services. It is concerned with the provision of tools to manage all types of abuse, not just cal / assault.	

CB advised the Board that he meets regularly with the JGa and that a steady trajectory of improvement continues within HCS. HCS is seen as an exemplar across GOJ with a maturing culture and thanked JGa and his team for their work.	
In response to JG's questions, risk turns green below 4. However, in Health and Safety risk management, the mitigations often reduce the likelihood but not the impact. Therefore, it is unlikely that a 'green' will ever be achieved.	
EOC confirmed that People and Culture Committee will receive future Health and Safety reports with the Q2 2024 scheduled for September 2024.	
ITe thanked JGa for his report, noting the intelligent and thorough approach to Health and Safety. The Unions have raised the issue of violence and aggression in their regular meetings with HCS and suggested it would be beneficial for ITe and meet ahead of the People and Culture Committee to prepare. CP reminded the Board that an audit had been completed last year with a subsequent programme of improvement.	

12	Royal College of Radiology Report including a Review of Mammography Service	Action
Before	e progressing to the key areas from the report, PA noted the following,	
•	Apologies to all patients and their relatives who have been affected by this report. Whilst the number of people affected is not large, this is not acceptable to any individual. Thanked Mr Simon West, Deputy Medical Director, who has led this piece of work. There are two parts to this work – firstly, the Review by the Royal College of Radiology and the Review by the British Society of Breast Radiologists. The review was commissioned following a concern raise through the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian regarding the performance of a Radiologist.	
servic has be ongoin descri told ne	Royal College of Radiology Report focussed on five different areas: patient safety, we planning and delivery, team working, clinical governance and managing concerns. There een a focus on the team-working / relationships within Radiology and improvement work is ing. The reference is to some members of staff, it is not universal. Of most concern is the aption that young, female doctors were not spoken to professionally and one doctor was not to go to the department. PA assured the board that this incident was managed in the atted manner.	
sugge Profes in Jers	ons between different professional groups are not unique to Jersey or Radiology. PA ested that HCS are behind the curve in supporting nurses and Allied Healthcare ssional in working to the top of their registration and moving away from the medical model sey would help culture. In addition, this would provide improve retention and provide nce to many services.	
is imp	are gaps in clinical governance however, item 11 highlighted some very good practice. It ortant to note that the report did not state that there was no clinical governance, rather that vements in clinical governance are needed. Radiology is a highly regulated area.	
There report	is a programme of action to address the recommendations, all of which are detailed in the	
all rec highliq regare	British Society of Breast Radiologists report led to the development of an action plan and commendations made have been accepted. Whilst avoiding focussing on individuals, PA ghted that the Radiologist concerned has acted in an exemplar manner following concerns ding their practice. It is important to note that this relates to one area of practice and HCS bood evidence that the same individual performs very well in other areas of radiology.	
alread the vie	eview did not recommend a mass review / recall on the basis that many patients had dy been seen and would likely be seen over the ensuing few months. However, HCS took ew that this period (5 months) was too long and commissioned an external review of hts. Key findings from this,	

• Of circa 3,500 patients, 650 had already been rescreened. Therefore circa 2,800 mammograms were reviewed. Of the 2,800, 23 needed to be recalled – 3 had already been seen which left 20 patients. In addition, a delay in diagnosis was identified for 14 patients and a duty of candour has been undertaken.

In summary, this has been a distressing time for patients and staff. PA assured the Board that the findings of the reports have been acknowledged and HCS will implement any required improvements.

AH thanked PA for the report and stated that the Board and the public will require ongoing assurance of the improvements delivered. AH noted the importance of the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian for all staff.

CG stated she was unclear as to the level of harm to the 34 individuals affected. In addition, this represents a very low error rate (0.4 - 1%) and asked if the error rate for this service is known. In addition, did the initial concern raised through the FTSU refer to skill or behaviour? Thirdly, the frequency of screening (yearly) appears to be more than the UK which is every 3 years. Is the cumulative effect that the public are being worried unnecessarily?

PA responded that the error rate is low and, in all probability, falls within what could be considered a normal range. However, the issue is that concerns within Radiology had been raised over a three-year period and had not been acted upon. The BSBR has not been published as it contains personal information that would be inappropriate for the public domain. However, HCS acknowledges that no screening programme can provide 100% assurance, but HCS had a duty to act upon the concern raised. In response, CG suggested that concerns raised in the future could be brought to the Quality, Safety and Improvement Committee to discuss and decide how these should be managed; context is important.

CB re-emphasised the key point that the concerns had been raised for three years within Radiology but had never been escalated from Radiology to senior management. The FTSU Guardian provided the opportunity to raise concerns through the system. The culture that fostered this failure to escalate is being addressed with all other recommendations. CB echoed PA's earlier point that behaviours do not relate to all staff within Radiology and the difficulties across professions are reflected elsewhere, for example within Maternity Services. However, HCS has a duty to manage all these issues head on, and despite a range of error, one patient harmed is one too many. HCS had to undertake the review (with expert opinion) to establish the number of patients involved. Whilst acknowledging that context is important, the report has raised significant issues that must be addressed and t is important to get an external view, particularly for small departments.

Following the outcome of the reviews, CP advised that a Psychological Safety in Healthcare Teams Programme has been developed, particularly for managers to provide them with the skills to have difficult conversations and foster a culture where people feel safe to speak up.

JG asked when the new mammography units are expected. EH suggested it is Q4 2024 but will confirm.

AH thanked PA for the report and advised that the Board will require assurance of the improvement delivery.

CG wished to emphasise that the public cannot be given the impression that the healthcare has a zero-error rate.

Action

13 Rheumatology Update

Reflecting on item 12, AH stated that it is difficult to strike the balance between addressing concerns with an appropriate and proportionate response. However, this should not indicate complacency, rather realism.

PA advised this is an update for the Board, primarily regarding the review of deceased patients. The focus will be on the improvements made within the rheumatology service. PA stated it is important to acknowledge and apologise to those patients and relatives who have been impacted by what has happened in this service. It is hoped that this report demonstrates the steps that HCS has taken to improve the service. PA also sought to acknowledge the tremendous effort of the staff in the rheumatology service for the improvements made in the service – this is now an exemplar service within HCS.

- The review of patients has been approached in different tranches and all previous audits have been completed. The most recent tranche has focussed on those patients who had been under the care of the rheumatology service and have died for any reason during the period Jan 2019 to Jan 2022. This period has been extended to patients who have died more recently.
- From Jan 2019 to-date, 190 patients were identified for review and 120 have been completed. The process includes the use of an audit tool to decide whether there are concerns regarding the care they received. Concerns existed for approximately one third of patients. These patients were subject to a Mortality Learning Review (Structured Judgement Review in the UK) followed by a panel review consisting of an independent general physician, a GP, an independent rheumatologist, Chief of Service Medicine and the Deputy Medical Director to establish if there was a possible or definite link between the care they received and their death. Under Jersey Law, HCS must notify the Police if further investigation may be required.
- In discussion with the Police and Viscount, it has been agreed that patients will be referred to the Viscount. HCS's part in the process ends here.
- To-date, 20 such referrals have been made.
- Of the 190, the remaining patients will be reviewed, and the Viscount has asked HCS to look back as far as possible. It is therefore likely that this process will take a long time (years).
- A Duty of Candour has been undertaken and they will be informed if there relative has been referred to the Viscount.
- All patients under the care of the service in recent years have been written to inform them that there is a process to establish whether they have come to harm as a result.
- 33 patients have been identified where it was felt that care has fallen below expected standards and may have resulted in possible medical harm.
- The medico-legal recourse remains under discussion and a pilot scheme is being piloted.

The following improvements have been made,

- 1. Commence an audit of those patients currently on biologics to assure their diagnosis is secure **complete**
- 2. The recommendations made regarding the two Doctors involved **complete**
- 3. Share the RCP report with the executive team and minister for health and social services, with oversight of an action plan by a Non-Executive Board member **complete**
- Appoint consultants on the specialist register, specialist nurses and access to physio, OT, podiatry, pharmacy and psychology services. Secretarial and administrative support in order to provide a sustainable, contemporary rheumatology service - complete
- 5. Introduce job plans for Rheumatology consultants and clinical nurse specialists complete.
- 6. Review processes for personal and professional development of the rheumatology service staff, including weekly teaching sessions and annual appraisals **complete**
- 7. Embed MDT working into everyday practice and establish links with a mainland modern rheumatology centre on track
- Ensure all patients starting a biologic have a documented biologic assessment, an
 objective assessment of disease activity and infection risk, documentation of relevant comorbidities and vaccination status, and confirmation that prescribing is in line with
 NICE/European guidelines complete
- Service should adopt a more holistic approach with the involvement of therapies on track
- 10. Review the frequency of follow up on track
- 11. Implement a standardized written correspondence template complete
- 12. Arrange a regular rheumatology MDT meeting with clear Terms of Reference. Record the MDT discussion and outcome in the patient's notes, with a copy sent to the GP and the patient **on track**

 Discourage the sole reliance on pharmaceutical companies for drug information and training – complete 	
 14. Review the arrangements for the prescribing of biologics; incorporate processes for challenge and be more proactive in providing regular updates on rheumatology prescribing - on track 	
15. Improve data collection and analysis in relation to dispensing rheumatological medications in order to assure patient safety prior to dispensing medication, maintain a record of the biologic therapy dispensed for audit purposes - on track	
 16. Hold a clinical governance meeting at least quarterly, including complaints, concerns, incidents, activity, staffing issues, audits and use of biologics. Document attendees and discussions, and report into the HCS clinical governance structure - on track 	
17. Regularly audit biologic therapies prescribing – complete	
 Use NICE guidance as part of the Rheumatology governance framework – complete Foster relationships between primary and secondary care to develop more robust monitoring and develop shared care guidelines - on track 	
 Support electronic prescribing and monitoring systems - complete for rheumatology Appoint a pharmacist for high-cost drugs, to understand the usage and cost of biologic drugs and produce prescribing protocols – complete 	
22. Enrol in a regular rolling audit programme to provide reassurance about the activity and outcomes for patients and the use of expensive resources such as biologic therapies - on track	
PA hopes that this reassures the Board and the public that a huge amount of work has been undertaken to realise these improvements.	
Whilst acknowledging the distressing nature of this, AH stated it is now right to focus on the actions and continued assurance regain the service. CG gave her thanks for the improvements being made. CB highlighted that the Quality, Safety and Improvement Committee will continue to monitor the assurance regarding the improvements. In addition, CB provided an apology to all batients and relatives who have been harmed in any way. The distress to staff was also acknowledged and support is being provided. However, this is a powerful example for the need for strong clinical governance, the need for following evidence-based guidance, participation in National Audits and linkage with a tertiary centre to ensure modernisation and sustainability in services.	

14	Medicine Improvement Plan	Action
Comn	Medicine Improvement Plan (IP) is monitored by the Quality, Safety and improvement nittee, AH invited CG to comment. CG commented that despite the absence of outcomes, provement work continues. CG escalated the issue regarding the funding for the	
	ultant posts for the full implementation of the medical model which is critical to the Medicine	

15	2024 HCS Annual Plan - Q2 Progress Report	Action
AH too	ok the paper as read.	

16	2025 Annual Business Planning Approach	Action
AH too	ok the paper as read.	

17	Quality and Performance Report Month 6	Action
AH in	vited exceptions only. No exceptions to highlight.	

18	Dermatology Sustainability	Action
EH ad	dvised the Board that the paper provides a very brief summary of the current service. CB	
highli	ghted that a second dermatology Consultant has been appointed and EH confirmed they	

will be taking up the post before end 2024. Following this, the Consultant will consider how to progress the service.

CG commented that her understanding is that the existing Consultant will only see pigmented lesions, and this means that the new Consultant will be overwhelmed with the large number of patients currently on the waiting list (circa 1500). The development of new care pathways has been requested although recognised that this will involve moving budgetary resource and empowering primary care practitioners. More can be done (in addition to recruitment) and if done well, there will be learning for other services. EH in agreement but CG advised this must be done as a matter of urgency due to the length of the waiting list. EH responded that work is ongoing to recruit to other vacancies and there are two GPs with specialist interest, one of which already works in the department and the other due to start January 2025. The use of teledermatology is also being explored.

19 Finance Report Month 6

Key headlines from the finance report (month 6).

• FY24 YTD M6 deficit is £13.9m giving a headline monthly run-rate of £2.3m. This is a deterioration on previous months. Drivers include tertiary care contracts (experiencing a 50% increase in tariff), mental health placements and social care, recharge from the accommodation service and medicine 9oncology and medical day care).

Action

- FRP savings of £3.6m have been delivered vs £4m plan at M6 made-up of £2m savings from original FRP schemes and £1.6m of additional mitigating savings delivered to recover slippage and reduce budget cost pressures.
- The year-end forecast is £24.2m deficit after delivering £5m of FRP savings, with further downside risks from cost pressures that may materialise during the year, before additional mitigation actions are taken.
- Recovery actions include intensive recovery support, further cost reduction actions and sustainable long-term funding.

OH highlighted that the HCS Ministerial meeting have been very supportive while trying to work through this.

CB advised that the Executive Leadership Team (ELT) met yesterday to explore additional actions to further mitigate the risks. Weekly meetings have been scheduled to ensure delivery of these plans and monitoring current spend. Other measures include reviewing management costs and management of overtime more effectively. The aim is to ensure that the current forecast deficit does not increase.

CG asked if it is possible to obtain a comparison of the department based on tariffs available. Whilst costs are higher in Jersey due to economies of scale, significant differences would be evident. OH stated that this is possible, and work has been going on regarding the patient level information costing system (PLICS) – the cost base for 2022 has been completed. CG stated that understood that doctors and nurses are not routinely coding activity meaning that the data is not available – is there a way of mandating coding? OH responded that the issue is one of resource – there are not enough coders. CB advised the Board that historically this is a skilled but low paid, in addition, these are not licensed posts and staff require intensive training. Consequently, this is a hard to recruit area.

AH advised that the Board would require continued assurance of the risks and implications of any additional savings. CB reassured the Board that quality impact assessments (QIAs) would be completed. In addition, could any of the increased pressures have been reasonably foreseeable. OH responded that HCS is well aware of where the pressures are coming from, it is the size of the pressure. Whilst HCS can enter negotiations regarding tertiary care contracts, there is not much bargaining power as Jersey has limited alternatives.

CS emphasised the benefits of substantive recruitment and in addition to saving money, permanent staff are more invested in the organisation and deliver good care. The Board heard that there are pockets of increasing recruitment.

20	Proposed Future Workforce Report Structure	Action
	oted that this was covered in the Chief Officer report. ITe advised the Board that the paper	
details	s the five priorities for ITe. In addition, the proposal for the workforce report is aligned to the	
Jerse	y Care Commission (JCC) domains which will provide the Board with information against	
these	criteria.	
1		

Action

Action

21 Committee Reports

The Committee reports were taken as read.

The Quality, Safety and Improvement Committee noted some escalations for the Board,

- 1. Medical Model previously discussed under item 14.
- Central Alert System the lack of a central purchasing system leading to probable overspends and inability to manage safety alerts effectively. OH responded that a key action for the FRP is that HCS has its own central buying team – the aim is to have this set up in the next three months. CB echoed this and does not feel assured that HCS can be assured regarding safety alert management.
- 3. **Cannabis prescribing** the prescribing of cannabis in the private sector is impacting the public sector due to the rise in mental illness and the lack of governance etc.

CG will provide feedback to the Committee.

22	Board Assurance Framework	Action
releva Each	took the paper as read and informed the Board that following review of the risks by the ant committee, there had been some movement in risk level (detailed in report). Committee will continue to draft its agenda according to the key assurance to ensure these fective.	

23 Questions form the Public

Member A: Member A commented that it is very good that the areas requiring improvement are becoming apparent. However, why was this information not available previously – for example by the Pharmacy Department (cost of biologics) and Medical Director.

PA responded that the issues are now being exposed. Radiology was actioned as soon as it was highlighted. In addition, as soon as the Rheumatology issues were raised with PA, these were acted upon. The culture is beginning to change and HCS is being open and transparent (as it should be). CB commented that these are 'old issues coming out in a new environment'. In part, the transparency has also been enhanced by the creation of this Board and its way of operating. CB referred to Professor Hugo Mascie's Review as to why Jersey faced these problems.

AH commented that whilst it is distressing when incidents occur, it is important to generate confidence by managing these effectively i.e. acting appropriately and proportionately. However, it remains critical the issues are exposed – this is the open and accountable culture that that Board aims to foster. It is good that HCS is addressing historical problems in this open way. CS commended the Medical Director and Chief Nurse for managing the issues that have surfaced, noted it is work in progress and putting clinical governance systems in place meets resistance. However, patient needs must be placed in the centre of everything.

Further support was provided by a member of the public who stated that changes had been implemented as a result of feedback.

Member B: Member B used his own experience as a service user to highlight the following issues: lack of challenge amongst Doctors (resulting in expensive use of external), lack of recognition of previous medical history, treated with disregard and disrespect and unfounded

diagnoses / reports. In addition, perceived unreasonable questioning of taking photographs during the Board meeting.

AW responded that whilst it is reasonable for the Board to expect to have their photograph taken, it is not reasonable for members of the public attending the meeting to have their photograph taken without their consent. Member B sought to reassure the Board that members of the public were not in any of the photographs.

AW advised that the repeated concerns specified are complicated, but AW will meet with member B outside this meeting to discuss.

Member C: Member C stated whilst there are people in the room that are trying to help manage individual concerns, a culture of keeping issues hidden continues.

Member D: Noting the Advisory nature of the Board, there are seven items for information, two for a decision, one for discussion, two for approval, ten for assurance and zero for advice to the Minister for Health and Social Services – why is this?

CB / EOC advised that the agenda provides a balance of agenda items that would typically be seen in other healthcare jurisdictions and promotes accountability in an open and transparent manner. The MHSS meets regularly with the NEDs and will be advised where necessary during these meetings.

Action

AH noted the benefits of these debates occurring in public.

MEETING CLOSE	
---------------	--

AH thanked all those in attendance and closed the meeting.

Date of next meeting: 26th September 2024